
 
 

 
 
 

FRIDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2021 
 
 

TO: THE CABINET MEMBER FOR LEADER  
 
 
I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A VIRTUAL MEETING OF 
THE CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR THE 
LEADER WHICH WILL BE HELD AT 9.30 AM, ON FRIDAY, 19TH 
NOVEMBER, 2021 FOR THE TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS 
OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED AGENDA. 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 
Democratic Officer: Martin S. Davies 

Telephone (direct line): 01267 224059 

E-Mail: MSDavies@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

 

Document Pack



 
 

 

 

A G E N D A   
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.   

2. DECISIONS RECORD - 14TH SEPTEMBER 2021.  3 - 6 

3. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE FOLLOWING GRANT 
FUNDS: TARGETED FINANCE FUND, MYNYDD Y BETWS 
COMMUNITY BENEFIT FUND & FOOD POVERTY FUND.  

7 - 50 

 
 
 
Note:- The  press and public are not entitled to attend the meeting. The decision record will 
be published normally within 3 working days. 



 
 

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR THE LEADER 
 

TUESDAY, 14 September 2021 

 
PRESENT: Councillor: E. Dole (Cabinet Member); 
 
The following officers were in attendance: 
R. Furlong, Economic Development Co-ordinator; 
J. Hancock, Bureau Co-ordinator; 
E. Laszlo, Bureau Officer; 
M.S. Davies, Democratic Services Officer. 
 
Virtual Meeting: 2.00 pm - 2.45 pm 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of personal interest. 
 

2. DECISIONS RECORD - 27TH JULY 2021 
 
RESOLVED that the decision record of the meeting held on the 27th July 
2021 be signed as a correct record. 
 

3. WELSH GOVERNMENT ALLOTMENT SUPPORT GRANT 
The Cabinet Member considered applications received for assistance from Welsh 
Government via the Allotment Support Grant, following contact with community 
groups which operated allotments in the county to establish the level of interest, to 
increase the availability of good quality allotment plots across Carmarthenshire. 
 
RESOLVED to approve the delivery of the Allotment Support Grant detailed 
in the report and the following applications for assistance subject to the 
usual terms and conditions and those specified in the report:  
 

Allotment Support Grant  

Project Award 

Dwyfor Growing Space - Llwynhendy, Llanelli £11,180.00 

Centenary Accessible Allotment Project – Carmarthen 5 Fields 
Allotment  

£1,750.00 

Community Hub Project – Carmarthen 5 Fields Allotment £800.00 

Rain Water Harvesting Project – Carmarthen 5 Fields Allotment £550.00 

Parking and Road Improvement Project – Carmarthen 5 Fields 
Allotment 

£1,200.00 

Drainage and accessibility - Llannon Community Allotments £1,000.00 

Installation of toilet facilities and meeting space - Parc Hinds 
Allotments, Carmarthen 

£11,324.00 

Communal area for other users from local area - Parc Hinds 
Allotments, Carmarthen 

£2,750.00 

Creation of a parking area to improve access - Parc Hinds 
Allotments, Carmarthen 

£4,000.00 

Installation of a new perimeter fence – Carmarthen 5 Fields 
Allotment 

£5,000.00 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
 

 
4. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE FOLLOWING GRANT FUNDS: 

TARGETED FINANCE FUND, WELSH CHURCH FUND & FOOD POVERTY 
FUND 
 
RESOLVED that the following applications for assistance from the Targeted 
Finance Fund, Welsh Church Fund and Food Poverty Fund be approved 
subject to the usual terms and conditions and those specified in the report:  
 

Targeted Finance Fund 

Applicant Award 

Llanelli Town Council [Penyfan Park Improvement Project] £20,000.00 

 

Welsh Church Fund 

Applicant Award 

Llanelli Town Council [Penyfan Facilities Improvement Project] £10,000.00 

Capel Cefnberrach [Energy Efficient Heating] £1,246.08 

St Elli Parish Church Llanelli [Capital Works] £10,000.00 

 

Food Poverty Fund 

Applicant Award 

Plant y Cwm £18,000.00 

Greenfield Baptist Church £2,200.00 

Llanelli Railway Good Shed Trust £7,500.00 

CAVS – Carmarthenshire Association of Voluntary Services £19,061.16 

Llwynhendy & Pemberton Forum £9,314.73 

Cwmaman Town Council £15,542.88 

Tyisha Foodbank at Tyisha Positive Action Group  £1,716.00 

 
5. REPORTS NOT FOR PUBLICATION 

 
RESOLVED pursuant to The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by The 
Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007 
that the following items were not for publication as the reports contained 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to 
the Act. 
 

6. CARMARTHENSHIRE RURAL ENTERPRISE FUND 
 
Following the application of the public interest test it was RESOLVED, 
pursuant to the Act referred to in minute no. 5 above, not to publicise the 
content of the report as it contained exempt information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority 
holding that information) (Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Act). 
 

The public interest test in this matter related to the fact that the report 
contained detailed information about the business and financial affairs and 

Page 4



 
 

ambitions of the applicants. In this case, the public interest in maintaining 
transparency and accountability is outweighed by the public interest in 
maintaining confidentiality, as disclosure would be likely to place persons 
and businesses named in the report at an unfair disadvantage in relation to 
their commercial competitors. 
 
The Cabinet Member considered an application received for assistance from the 
Carmarthenshire Rural Enterprise Fund.  
 
RESOLVED that the following application received for assistance from the 
Carmarthenshire Rural Enterprise Fund be approved subject to the usual 
terms and conditions and those specified in the report: 
 

Carmarthenshire Rural Enterprise Fund 

Application Ref Applicant Award 

CREF 106 Sarnau Motors Ltd £50,000.00 

 
 
 
 
 

 
__________________________    __________________ 
CABINET MEMBER     DATE 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR THE LEADER 

19/11/2021 
 

Cabinet Member: Portfolio: 

Cllr. Emlyn Dole Cabinet Member Decisions Meeting for the Leader 

 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE FOLLOWING GRANT FUNDS:  

TARGETED FINANCE FUND, MYNYDD Y BETWS COMMUNITY BENEFIT FUND  

& FOOD POVERTY FUND                               

Recommendations / key decisions required: 
 
Targeted Finance Fund – Annex 1 
1 Application – Total Value = £20,000.00 
 
Mynydd y Betws – Annex 2 
6 Applications – Total Value = £66,592.30 
 
Food Poverty Fund – Annex 3 
4 Applications – Total Value = £18,920.86 
 
Total Number of Applications - 11     Total Value = £105,513.16 
 

Reasons:  
Development of Sustainable Communities within Carmarthenshire 
Directorate 

Name of Head of Service: 

Helen Morgan 

 

Report Author: 

Caroline Owen 

Jon Hancock 

Designations: 

Development Manager Regen 
& Policy 

 

 

Bureau Officer 

Bureau Manager 

Tel: 01267 242367 

HLMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.
uk 

 

Tel: 01269 590216 

CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

JonHancock@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): None 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): N/A 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 

 

Signed:  
____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 

                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 

The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance 
at the meeting 
 

Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 

 

 

 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted: 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 8



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR THE LEADER 

19th November 2021 
 

Financial Assistance from the following grant funds:  

Targeted Finance Fund, Mynydd y Betws Community Fund & Food Poverty Fund 

 
 

To approve the following: 

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED: 

 
Targeted Finance Fund – Annex 1 
1 Application – Total Value = £20,000.00 
 
Mynydd y Betws – Annex 2 
6 Applications – Total Value = £66,592.30 
 
Food Poverty Fund – Annex 3 
4 Applications – Total Value = £18,920.86 
 
Total Number of Applications - 11     Total Value = £105,513.16 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED YES 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report: 

Signed:  Helen Morgan                                                                 Development Manager Regen & Policy 

Policy and 
Crime & 
Disorder  

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Organisational 
Development  

Physical 
Assets   

NONE 

 
NONE  NONE  NONE  NONE  

 
 NONE  

 
NONE  

 
CONSULTATIONS 

 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

Signed: Helen L Morgan                                                                                                 

Development Manager Regeneration & Policy 

1.Local Member(s) As per individual report 

2.Community / Town Council   As per individual report 

3.Relevant Partners   As per individual report 

4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations As per individual report 

  

Page 9



 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
 

Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection  

Targeted Finance Fund 
 
Mynydd y Betws 
Community Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
Food Poverty Fund 

TFF-21-04 
 
MYB-21-01 
MYB-21-02 
MYB-21-04 
MYB-21-05 
MYB-21-07 
MYB-21-09 
 
FPF-21-14 
FPF-21-15 
FPF-21-16 
FPF-21-17 

County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 
 

ANNEX 1 
Targeted Finance Fund 2021-2022 

Report Author: CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01269 590216 

Balance Available - £80,415.00 
 

Report Value - £20,000 

 
 

 
1 of 1 

 
Application Reference: TFF-21-04 

 
 

Project Title Community Café Development 

Applicant Llanarthne Village Hall 

Ward LLANDDAROG 

Key Account 

Management 

The Targeted Finance Fund is a discretionary fund available to Key Account 
Management (KAM) clients. For an organisation to become a KAM client they 
must be a third sector not for profit organisation that falls into one of the following 
3 categories:  
 

 Existing social enterprises that have the potential to grow, be sustainable 
and create employment  

 Emerging projects that have the potential to create jobs  

 Third sector organisations that deliver vital services within our 
communities 

 

Project 

Description 

The hall has several specific aims to ensure a variety of beneficial social 
activities take place and when the hall was constructed, provision was made for 
further developments intending to increase the scope of general sustainability 
and community benefits. The design of the hall incorporates sustainability, 
including social, environmental, and economic aspects and sits sensitively in its 
environment, with geothermal heating in association with solar panels ensure 
that its carbon footprint is light. 
 
They previously applied for funding, to create a multipurpose community area, 
accessible to children of all ages and abilities, their friends, and families as well 
as to other local community groups, which has now been completed.  This 
involved an extension to increase the floor space by 61.4 sq. m which allowed 
for a new meeting room and storage facilities, which has enabled the current 
meeting room and storage facilities within the hall to be refurbished into a 
community cafe and social area. 
 
Over the summer months, with funding provided from Comic relief run a pilot 
scheme, providing a temporary coffee shop within the hall, which was open 
Thursday to Sunday from 12.30pm to 4pm. This pilot scheme was to provide a 
facility for residents to start mixing again, following the COVID pandemic. 
 
The initiative has proved popular with community members and visitors to the 
area, the refreshments were provided by the committee members free of 
charge, tea and coffee provided by the hall committee and the milk is provided 
by Towy Valley milk who have a vending machine on the hall premises, proven 
to be a truly community effort.  
 

Page 11

mailto:CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 
 

The community and visitors want them to continue with this provision 
permanently, expanding on the service provided, as on average they currently 
have a minimum of 22 visitors every time the coffee shop is open, providing the 
residents of Capel Dewi, Penrhiwgoch and outlying areas the opportunity to 
socialise safely. 
 
The funding requested will be to re-establish the current meeting room into a 
community cafe and to purchase equipment, also staff costs as they move 
forward from the volunteer stage to creating a job, to run this facility. 
 
Currently they are looking to employ a member of staff for 24 hrs a week, but 
over time, especially with increased footfall and income, they will be looking at 
further job opportunities, especially if CCC are successful with future funding for 
the Tywi Valley Cycle path, as this facility will also become an “Intermediate 
Hub”  
 
In the Spring and Summer months there will be a need for longer opening 
hours, which will need additional staff and volunteer time, who will be receiving 
the necessary skills and training for working in the facility, to include food 
hygiene certificate. 
 
This new project aims to support the development of sustainable rural 
communities by improving access to services through the facilities it offers, 
which are community led, sustainable and of direct benefit to the community. 
 
Building connections with the wider community and engaging with all 
newcomers to the village, increasing footfall, providing additional income, this in 
turn will increase the hall’s future sustainability and its ability to provide services 
and activities for future generations. 
 
It is intended that key services will continue as part of the development of the 
hall as the hub of the community, providing all the necessary services to the 
future needs of the village. 
 
The opening of a community café will generate additional income in sustaining 
the delivery of this project. 
 
The hall is the hub of the community and pre-lockdown was used daily for 
classes, groups, clinics, workshops, and conferences. Classes include yoga, 
theatre group, Youth Christian Club, Urdd, Ballet, Adult Welsh Folk dancing, 
flower arranging and a mother and toddler group, really something for everyone 
within the community.  Every weekend was also full of parties, weddings, and 
concerts. Their outdoor areas are well used daily - the children's play areas, 
green spaces, picnic areas and as a base to explore the beautiful Tywi Valley 
and has been an even more treasured space since the covid restrictions came 
into force. 
 

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education - 2 

 Number of individuals into volunteering - 12 

 Number of community groups/organisations assisted – 25 

 New enterprises created - 1 

 Number of jobs created – 1 

 Increased turnover /profitability - £5k 

 Public and private leverage funding £6,037.82 

 

Total Project Cost £26,037.82 

Page 12



 
 

Eligible Capital 

 

 

Eligible Revenue 

 

Ineligible Costs 

 

Amount and % of  

grant requested 

 

Match funding 

£13,557.82 
Refurbishment & equipment 

 
£12,480.00 

24hrspw @ £10.00ph – gross 
 

Nil 
 

£20.000.00 @ 76.8% 
 
 

£6,037.82 
Own funds secured 

Cllr and Officer 

Consultations 

Undertaken 

 Cllr. Ann Davies 

 Sam Palmer – Project Officer Towy Valley  

 Simon Charles – Transport Strategy & Infrastructure Manager 

 Hefin Jones - Llanarthne Community Council 

 Peter Bowen – Llanarthne Community Council 

 Dilwyn Morgan - Llanarthne Community Council 

 Julian Edwards – Development & Built Heritage Manager 

 Mike O’Shea – Welsh Government 
 

Evidence of Need / 

Community 

Engagement 

Carmarthen to Llandeilo Cycle Route Stakeholder Consultation event in 
Llanarthne Village Hall, a well-attended event, confirming the need for 
“Intermediate Hubs” Consultation with the Tywi Valley Project lead to work in 
partnership with CCC Cycle path development. 

Feasibility consultation study undertaken by Llanarthne Community Council, 
which identified the need for accessible public toilets within the village. 

Consultation with the community and service providers has been undertaken at 
all opportunity over the past 4 years, at events,activities and with other 
organisations. 
 
Individual letters of support have been provided in support of this project, also 
in excess of 200 community signatures to date. 

Contributing to 

key Strategies 

The Welsh Government Strategy for Tourism – 2013/2020 – Partnership 
for Growth 
Welsh Government strategy, that set out the key priorities for the tourism 
industry, and other organisations that will deliver a more prosperous and 
competitive sector. 
 
Councils Corporate Strategy 2018-2023 
Create more jobs and growth throughout the county 
Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity) 
Support good connections with friends, family, and safer communities 
A Council wide approach to support Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire 
Promote Welsh Language and Culture 
 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Strategy: 
To support business growth, retention & specialisation 
To support a skilled and ambitious workforce 
To seek to maximise job creation and employment prospects 
To support the development of a knowledge economy  
To develop the distinctiveness and attractiveness of the area in terms of 
tourism and business investment whilst ensuring that Wales as a nation is 
resilient. 

Page 13



 
 

 
The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act sets out goals for a healthier 
stronger Wales with happy communities Providing services that meet the needs 
of the families, young people are essential in creating a stronger sustainable 
communities actively addressing and improving the economic social environment 
in accordance with the sustainable development priniciples aimed at achieving 
the well being goals. 
 
Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy 2013-2030, 
Activity for Business growth, retention, and specialisation, also maximising job 
creation through strategic activity planning, processes will put organisation in a 
better position to grow, retaining and implementing innovation and knowledge 
in accordance with the changing competitive infrastructures. 
 
Simply Prudent Health Care pubished in 2013 by the Bevan Commission 
considers how Wales can make the most effective use of available resources.In 
April 2015 the goverment implemented changes to the care Act that has 
affected many people that require support, the Act gives more resposibilities to 
Local Authorities to asses the support required . Many will require support from 
charities and organisations on a local level , the extension would provide a 
community space that would be able to deliver a number of key services within 
the community and with access to on site key medical care. 

Ownership/Lease Ownership 
Registered Charity -1080289 
 

Business 

Plan/Officer 

Comments 

including details of 

support moving 

forward/next steps 

linked to growth 

and sustainability 

The outdoor recreation facilities are utilised by the public daily, due to the 
accessibility of the children’s play area, green space, picnic area, and parking, 
irrespective of the hall being open, which was the main reason for the extension, 
due to the community requesting accessible public toilet facilities. 
 
The hall has a new extension on the existing facility, which incorporates a 
disabled toilet, baby/changing facilities, shower facilities and a new meeting 
room, along with storage facilities, which has enabled the existing meeting room 
within the hall to be refurbished into a community café. 
 
This project will continue to work in partnership with the Towy Valley Cycle path, 
creating an “Intermediate Hub” which will serve as a physical connection point to 
the route of the cycleway, providing people a sustainable and healthy travel 
option, connecting with villages between the two main towns of Carmarthen and 
Llandeilo. 
 
They work with the Carmarthenshire Cardiac Clinic as they have used the hall 
for the past 18 months due to the COVID pandemic, which has been free of 
charge to provide a safe environment for patients to be assessed, in a safe 
environment and this clinic continues, every week on a Tuesday.  
 
They are registered with the Community Payback Scheme within the Probation 
Service and look forward to working with the team again soon.  
 
They have also established links to work with Social Services to provide 
volunteering opportunities to more vulnerable adults, on a one session per week 
basis, as this would benefit the service users as well as the volunteers in gaining 
confidence and skills. 

Recommendation Award - £20,000.00 

Subject to: 

 

 

 

Page 14



1 
 

Annex 2 
 

Executive Board Member Decisions Meeting for the Leader 
Mynydd y Betws Community Benefit Fund 

2021-2022 
Report Author: Caroline Owen 

CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01269 590216 

 
Budget Available - £86,627.29 

 
Full Report Value: £66,592.30 

 
 

1 of 6 
 

Application reference:  MYB-21-01 
 

Project Title Wonderful Willow 

Applicant The Hangout 

Ward GARNANT 

Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

The Hangout is a registered charity, with an aim to help adults and 
children who live in and around Ammanford, who suffer from 
anxiety, loneliness & behavioural problems, they may be 
disengaged and talking therapy isn’t working. They offer equine 
programmes for individuals by referral, family groups and their 
support network and they also have campfire group sessions to 
make charcoal, whittle wood, weave wool and willow, plus more. 

They have held several successful willow weaving sessions for all 
ages and would like to grow their own willow to make this activity 
more cost effective and to give the sessions another dimension by 
allowing participants to be involved in the growing and coppicing of 
the willow, which is easy to grow in Wales and can be used for basket 
making, fuel, living structures and land moisture control etc. 
 
Currently they are having to buy in willow from commercial providers 
which increases the cost of each session and limits the variety of 
willow they use, how they use it and the education around willow, its 
uses and care. Participants have reported back the therapeutic 
benefits of working from willow, such as mindfulness, relaxation, 
increased manual dexterity, a sense of achievement and purposeful 
occupation.  
 
The grant requested will be used to prepare an area of ground, 
purchase weed suppressant matting and willow sticks, along with 
engaging willow working experts to further educate the staff and 
volunteers in the skills that they can then pass on at a much-reduced 
service cost in the future, also allowing them to hold regular sessions 
to develop skills for those interested in furthering them without the 
need for payment as many are often not able to do so without 
causing additional financial hardship. 
 

Page 15

mailto:CAOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


2 
 

The funds would also enable them to purchase enough willow to 
make hurdles that are required for safety reasons as their 
composting toilet is situated at the edge of the car park, and they 
would like to create a natural movable barrier that reminds children 
to slow down as they use the gate to the toilet, so they do not rush 
through into the car park area. The making of the hurdles would be 
done by participants, so they remain involved in as many aspects of 
the charity’s development as possible and as an additional skill. 
 
They regularly work with vulnerable children and adults and would 
like to install CCTV to safeguard participants, staff & volunteers alike. 
All participants would be informed of the CCTV and its role in 
safeguarding all against accusations of any description and within 
the communities that they work with it is not uncommon for 
accusations to be made, which they have not had any to date. They 
would also add WIFI extension, so it is available for carers, 
professionals and participants if needed. 
 
The willow weaving sessions bring communities together to share 
in a common activity, some of the communities already benefitting 
are foster and adoption families, youth groups as well as those 
suffering from mental health issues, providing a safe and 
understanding environment for those within these communities due 
to their experience in working within them and their links to Social 
Services.  
 
The value of shared experiences and side by side learning should 
not be underestimated, it creates a bond based on something 
common and shared, dialogue and questioning is created during 
the activity as well as teamwork to achieve success. As much as 
possible they hold the activity outside in a sheltered woodland area 
which also creates an atmosphere of relaxation and tranquillity 
surrounded by nature which we all know has great mental health 
benefits. 
 
Skill acquisition for those learning to make hurdles and baskets, 
could lead to self-employment locally. 
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

 
 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 

£4,985.00 - Gross 
 

£1,020.00 
£500.00 – CCTV & WIFI 

£400.00 – Basketry Planting Willow 
£120.00 – Hurdle Willow 

 
£3,965.00 

£2,880.00 – Instructor led basketry courses 
£560.00 – Family weaving sessions 

£525.00 – Staff costs to prepare & plant 
 

Nil 
 

 
£4,485.00 @ 89.9% 

 

Page 16



3 
 

 
Match funding 

 

 
£500.00 

Own funds secured 
 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

The owners are foster carers, so understand the need of these 
children and families first-hand, they have links to social workers, 
foster associations, adoption agencies and local youth groups, all of 
which understand the value of outdoor nature-based activities that 
are purposeful and encourage shared experiences.  
 
Parents of children with additional needs and behaviour that might 
be difficult in other environments are catered for and understood 
and this is a great support to adults bringing such children along. It 
is also a great and valued opportunity for those from similar 
communities to chat and share their experiences and gain support 
and additional community links from meeting others.  
 
They are based in a poor area with limited opportunities for 
acquiring new skills or employment opportunities and to offer 
someone a skill that could enable them to earn for themselves is 
truly powerful and current participants and volunteers could be the 
future instructors of the courses they run in the future. 
 
Facebook page shows the evidence of need for this project delivery 
supporting the need and community engagement. 
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Recreation, Education, Health, Environment, Energy 
Efficiency/Sustainability, Culture 
 
Weaving with willow is hugely enjoyable and relaxing and is a great 
way to spend leisure time with others and produce something 
worthwhile and usable, a productive pastime, as it focuses 
participants on the task in hand, reduces anxiety and other mental 
health issues while being highly sociable and increases self-esteem 
with the production of something to be proud of. 
 
They also educate participants on the historical and cultural 
aspects of the use of willow, its care, uses (old &modern) along 
with its sustainability and environmental benefits in stabilising and 
managing wet land etc. 
 

Ownership/ Lease Ownership 

Cross Cutting Themes 
Welsh Language 

ICT 
Equal Opportunities 

 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

 Environmental Policy 

 Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Policy 

 Safeguarding Policy 

 Welsh Language Policy 
 
 
This project is highly sustainable for the environment as the willow 
once planted will grow year on year providing resources much 
needed for creative well-being sessions as well as to make products 
that can be sold locally.  
 

Page 17



4 
 

The willow can also be coppiced, new shoots can be replanted to 
grow yet more if required and any waste from the sessions can be 
fed to the animals and used in their campfire sessions as fuel and 
when setup this project will require very little sustainability and 
produce zero waste, also reducing on road miles. 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

They have one self-employed member of staff whose responsibility 
will be to prepare the ground for planting, organise volunteers and 
participants to assist with the planting and coppicing in a years’ time. 
They are also responsible for organising, publicising, and hosting the 
sessions and are keen to develop their own willow skills from an 
experienced instructor with the view of taking over the delivery of the 
sessions in the future.  
 
To keep costs to a minimum they are paid for the hours they work 
rather than a salary. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

The charity since being set up is thriving and providing essential 
workshops, supporting much needed services for those individuals 
which attend the facility. 
 
There is no duplication of services within the area and fully supported 
by other external funders, due to the nature of the provision they 
provide, essential due to the COVID pandemic, providing services 
for those suffering with anxiety and loneliness, a place to meet safely 
and learn. 
 

Future Sustainability Staff and volunteers will continue to improve their skills and 
knowledge in working with willow so they will be able to lead weaving 
sessions without the need of a specialist instructor – this will reduce 
the cost of the delivery of each session as will the fact that they will 
have their own supply of ‘home-grown’ willow in a year’s time so less 
will have to be sourced commercially. 
 
Many of the participants are happy to make voluntary contributions 
for each session they attend which helps towards covering costs. 
They also host other groups on the site who are charged for this 
service which again covers costs and contributes to their ongoing 
fund raising. 
 
They also have the desire to make saleable willow items within the 
sessions which will again help raise funds when sold locally. 
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation of outputs 

 New volunteers – 4 

 New services – 1 

 New community assets - 1 
 
With all their sessions, feedback is gathered from the participants as 
much as they can to continue to deliver what is wanted and needed, 
hence the desire to develop the work with willow as it has been so 
keenly embraced and requested. 
They record the number of attendees to the sessions and the age 
range covered to enable them to target their audience and are 

Page 18



5 
 

planning to gather evidence from participants of these workshops 
regarding the impact on their quality of life and mental health. 
 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

Applied for funding in 2019 for groundworks and fencing, rejected by 
panel due to being a newly set up charity, with no track record or 
information on referrals being made. 
 
Their Facebook page evidences the need for this project delivery 
also the community engagement and use of the facility. 
 
The Postcode lottery and Awards for All have supported funds of 
£20k towards their project delivery of activities, there would be no 
duplication of funds if MYB awarded. 
 
The member of staff is paid at a set hourly rate as agreed by the 
trustees to cover sessions that engage the public. It is understood 
and agreed that the setup and breakdown of each session, 
sourcing necessary materials and the maintenance and preparation 
of the site for the sessions are included in this fee, the member of 
staff will invoice the trustees on a self-employed basis.  
 
The instructor led classes bring in outside expertise to teach these 
skill-based sessions that have been much requested, the instructor 
will invoice the trustees for payment on a self-employed basis.  
 
 

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education  

 Number of individuals into volunteering - 4 

 Number of individuals into employment  

 No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 

 Number of social enterprises created 

 Number of social enterprises supported 

 Number of full-time jobs created  

 Number of jobs safeguarded  

 Public and private leverage funding - £500.00 
 

Recommendation Award - £4,485.00 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



6 
 

2 of 6 
 

Application reference:  MYB-21-02 
 

Project Title Maesquarre Park Regeneration 

Applicant Betws Community Council 

Ward BETWS 

Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

Betws Community Council took over the asset of Maesquarre 
Playground in 2019. The current equipment is at end of life and there 
is now an opportunity to improve the area to ensure it is a free facility 
suitable for all to use and enjoy. 
 
As part of the first round of COVID-19 lockdown measures, the UK 
government stipulated a maximum of one hour's exercise per person 
per day, images of sunny parks across national press made it clear 
where people in the UK wanted to spend that hour. Green space is 
important to us all, and yet millions of people lack good quality green 
space close to home, especially in poorer areas. 
 
Access to nature and better-quality open space is good for us. 
According to government: "access to natural green spaces for fresh 
air, exercise and quiet contemplation has benefits for both physical 
and mental health. Research provides good evidence of reductions 
in levels of heart disease, obesity and depression where people live 
close to green spaces." 
 
As such, the COVID-19 pandemic provides a new way of looking at 
the value that residents place on greenspaces. The coronavirus 
pandemic has therefore resulted in a reshaping of the values that 
people have for greenspaces, and thereby increase pressure, 
through social and political actions, for enhancing these 
environments. Furthermore, given the well-documented health 
benefits of exposure to natural environments, we emphasise that 
urban greenspaces are not only useful for providing people with a 
means for stress release during times of societal disruption, such as 
a pandemic, but can also help people to prepare for such times 
physically and mentally. By providing residents areas to exercise and 
socialise regularly, greenspaces promote physical and psychological 
well-being, which in turn improves resistance to, as well as the ability 
to cope with, new pathogens. 
 
The project seeks to secure funding for much needed play 
equipment for children of all ages and accessibility for disabled 
children, also seating areas for parents and grandparents to meet 
and supervise the children in the park. 
 
During and since the pandemic the need for outdoor recreation and 
open green space is essential for the community, the funding would 
provide much needed play equipment for the children, also providing 
picnic tables and benches for outdoor recreation facilities. 
 
The play park and seating area would enable people to meet 
outside safely to socialize and share experiences of parenting and 
caring and discuss anxieties. 

Page 20

https://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20140605111422/http:/www.naturalengland.org.uk/regions/east_of_england/ourwork/gi/accessiblenaturalgreenspacestandardangst.aspx


7 
 

 
The ‘Play Sufficiency assessment’ identified that playing outside as 
the most popular setting for children and those parents want a safe 
environment for children to play.  Their main worry and concern 
were the increase in road traffic. 
 
Lots of families travel to other areas to use their facilities which 
have a more varied function than what is currently available on the 
site/within the village. A better range of facilities would ensure less 
travel and help with the village’s carbon footprint reduction, 
improve, and help to maintain the close-knit village feel/culture. 
 
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
Match funding 

 

£22,820.00 – NET 
 

£22,820.00 
£18,920.00 – Play equipment & Installation 

£750.00 – Picnic table with wheelchair access 
£1,500.00 - Adult seat bench 

£1,650.00 – Removal & replacement of foundations, 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 

£15,000.00 @ 65.8% 
 

£7,820.00 
£6,869.00 – Section 106 – secured 

£951.00 – Own funds 
 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

Questionnaire 
A questionnaire was distributed to all dwellings within Betws Ward 
during Summer 2020. The purpose of this exercise was to gain 
understanding of what the residents of Betws wanted to happen to 
all 3 parks / play areas within the ward and to provide all with an 
opportunity to have their say regarding the area.  
 
Seating Area / Picnic Tables 
A respondent stated, ‘Benches put back for parents to sit while kids 
playing would be good’, while another wrote ‘maybe seating for the 
oldies or one or two picnic tables?’. This is a common theme within 
the responses with 21% of the respondents stating that benches 
and/or picnic tables would be ideal improvements to Maesquarre 
Playground.  
 
Toddler Area 
22% of the respondents said that the park does not currently have 
adequate play equipment for toddlers, with one respondent stating, 
‘there is nothing for small children’, whilst another stated ‘area for 1–
3-year-olds please’.  
 
Further evidence of needs has been provided by the community, via 
emails, telephone calls and social media, also written letters of 
support have been provided. 

Page 21



8 
 

 
Summary 
The Community Council have consulted with all within Betws Ward 
via the questionnaire and been contacted by several local individuals 
regarding Maesquarre Playground. 
 
From the questionnaire results and speaking to locals who use the 
playground, the Community Council were able to understand the 
needs of the Community and priorities the above 3 points. Also, a 
meeting with the maintenance company was arranged to find out 
which current equipment needed to be replaced / taken out first. 
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Health and Recreation 
As outlined in CCC’s Well Being Objectives child obesity is on the 
increase in Carmarthenshire and is above the Welsh average, it is 
important therefore that children have every opportunity to be active 
and play outside. Play is an important part of a child’s development, 
and the improvement of the play facilities will promote the health 
and well-being of the residents of the village of Betws and adjacent 
areas.   
 
Environment  
The project will improve the physical environment of the area as the 
current facilities have become tired and not fit for purpose, 
providing a more attractive and welcoming park will encourage 
increased participation and will help foster a sense of ownership 
and pride amongst residents. The materials specified for the works 
will where possible be from sustainable sources and local 
contractors will be used to reduce the carbon footprint. The 
equipment will be capable of being recycled at the end of its life.   
 
Education 
It is proven that children learn through play, it helps to improve their 
gross and fine motor skills, develop social skills by sharing and 
taking turns. Playing together will encourage children from different 
schools to integrate and form friendships, and therefore welcoming 
new children into the community. Playgrounds provide crucial and 
vital opportunities for children to develop cognitive and physical 
skills through play. Playgrounds that promote different types of play 
are vital for a child’s cognitive, emotional, physical, and social 
development. 
 
Energy Efficiency/Sustainability 
The provision of the additional equipment will ensure the 
sustainability of the play area as a main playground provision in the 
community. The Council regularly checks the equipment and 
ensures repairs are swiftly completed to ensure the longevity of 
play equipment 
 
Culture 
This new facility can be utilised by several local organisations such 
as Betws Primary School, Betws Family Centre, Betws in Need, 
Betws Cylch Meithrin 
 

Ownership/ Lease CCC - Community Asset Lease Agreement  

Page 22



9 
 

Cross Cutting Themes 
Welsh Language 

ICT 
Equal Opportunities 

 
Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

 Welsh Language Policy 

 Equal Opportunities Policy 

 Environmental Policy 
 
 
The Community Council has an active Environmental Policy which is 
strictly adhered to and will update Section 6 of the Environmental 
(Wales) Act 2016 – The biodiversity and Resilience of Ecosystems 
Duty which is reviewed when changes are made or every 3 years 
from 2019 and every effort will be made to use materials from a 
sustainable source and will be capable of being recycled at the end 
of its use. 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

Project Management will be overseen by Betws Community Council 
Recreation Ground Committee, the Clerk and Chairperson. 
 
Jose Picouto- Chair of Council 
Angela Brown- Project Manager 
Mike Jones-Chair of Recreation Committee 
 
The Council already employ an experienced person to inspect the 
park regularly to ensure that the equipment is in good working order 
and any problems identified will be repaired. 
 
The preparation work and installation of the equipment will be 
contracted to the best tender and where possible local businesses 
will be used to ensure support to the local economy. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

There is a large housing estate behind the park and many smaller 
ones close to the park as well as Maesquarre Road.   
 
The nearest park is at the other side of the village and children 
would not be able to attend this park independently due to having 
to walk along a busy road that does not have a pavement and they 
would have to cross three different main roads. 
 

Future Sustainability Betws Community Council are already responsible for all the 
maintenance and upkeep of the area since taking on the asset from 
CCC in 2019 and this will continue, the costs will be budgeted from 
within the Precept, and they will also plan a sinking fund to ensure 
that future repairs and replacement can be achieved. 
 
The two contractors who maintain the land and equipment entered 
new three-year contracts which began in March 2021 and the 
equipment is assessed annually by an RPI approved inspector via 
CCC 
 
This area along with the Heol y Felin Playground and Green, also 
Betws Park are insured under a policy which is held with Zurich 
Municipal Insurance. 
 
The Community Council will take full responsibility for the 
management and maintenance of the park and will budget annually 
for the upkeep of the park i.e., grass cutting and checking of the 

Page 23



10 
 

equipment.  Any repairs needed will be paid for by the Community 
Council. 
 
Currently, there are many volunteers who regularly walk around the 
park and communicate any concerns to the clerk.   
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Monitoring and 

Evaluation of outputs 

 New volunteers – 6 

 New services – 1 

 Physical improvements – 1 

 Environmental improvement schemes – 1 

 New Community assets -3 

 
The project outputs were initially identified from the questionnaire 
responses and became the main priorities for the project.  
 
The Community Council are currently paying for regular 
maintenance and fixing of equipment to extend their life span and 
when new equipment is installed, a way to evaluate and evidence its 
success would be to see if there is a decrease in maintenance cost.  
 
Another option would be to conduct short customer satisfaction 
surveys within the park and ask the adults specific questions 
regarding the new equipment. However, to ensure the whole 
community is reached, a newsletter could be distributed to all within 
Betws Ward with information regarding the new equipment and 
attaching a brief review questionnaire to ascertain their views on the 
completed project. This will ensure all who received the 
questionnaire would receive an update and are given an opportunity 
to have their say.  
 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

This project has been under consideration for a few years and 
ongoing consultation has been undertaken to establish the 
community needs. 
 
This funding request is to deliver what the community require within 
the park as essential, which is phase 1 delivery of many more 
improvements required, to benefit the whole community. 
 
Due to the COVID pandemic, it is essential to provide local 
communities with outdoor green space, providing essential 
amenities for all ages to benefit. 
 

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education  

 Number of individuals into volunteering - 6 

 Number of individuals into employment  

 No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 

 Number of social enterprises created 

 Number of social enterprises supported 

 Number of full-time jobs created  

 Number of jobs safeguarded  

 Public and private leverage funding - £6,869.00 
 

Recommendation Award - £15,000.00 
 

Page 24



11 
 

 
3 of 6 

 
Application reference:  MYB-21-04 

 

Project Title Solar Panels 

Applicant Penygroes Memorial Hall & Institute 

Ward PENYGROES 

Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

The charity originated in 1928 when over 6 acres of land was 
leased to the scheme for 999 years, to build a hall and institute 
building. The original building was demolished in the late 1990s 
and a modern hall constructed as a community venue, which 
opened in 1999, making it one of the most modern miner’s welfare 
halls in Wales, as a flat single storey building with adequate car 
parking. 
 
The facilities within the community hall currently include a large hall, 
with a rear extension for storage, stage, games room, crèche and 
fully fitted kitchen. The hall is utilised by a wide cross section of the 
community, young and old, for which constant heat is important for 
those users, especially the OAP’S, children in the Cylch group and 
blood service provision. 
 
The objects of the Institute are to promote the education, culture, 
health, and wellbeing for the residents of Penygroes and 
surrounding district, regardless of age, ethnic origin, ability, and 
gender, religious or other belief or political affiliation. 
 
This project is to make the hall building completely energy efficient 
by installing solar panels, part of the committee’s energy 
conservation plan, having already changed the lighting to LED, 
replaced all windows, their future proposal was to generate their own 
electricity with solar panels, reducing energy costs making the 
organisation more sustainable. 
 
The reduction in heat loss, reduced energy usage, lead to reduced 
costs and these reductions are fed back to the community groups 
through minimum hire charges, thus making the hall affordable to all. 
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
Eligible Revenue 

 
Ineligible Costs 

 
Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

£10,363.50 – Gross 
 

£10,363.50 
Installation of solar panels 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 
£8,290.80 @ 80% 

 
 

£2,072.70 
Own funds secured 

 

Page 25



12 
 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

The need to become energy efficient has been consulted with 
stakeholders and users of the facility, with an outcome of this 
project, especially due to the winter months. 
 
Consultation was undertaken with several bodies including 
organisations, current users of the facility and the community, 
Individual letters of support have been received in support of this 
project from. 
 

 Ysgol Meithrin 

 Penygroes OAP Association 

 Sisterhood/Women’s Institute 

 History Society 

 NHS  

 Women’s Guild 

 Penygroes Indoor Bowls Club members 
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Energy Efficiency/Sustainability 
The project targets the causes of energy & heat loss from the hall 
and identifies measurers that will result in the building being far 
more energy efficient, greatly improving the long-term sustainability 
of the organisation. 
 
Recreation/Education/Health/Culture – Creating a comfortable 
and modern serviceable environment for the recreational use of 
members and the community users. 
  
The objects of the Institute are to promote the education, culture, 
health, and wellbeing for the residents of Penygroes and 
surrounding district, regardless of age, ethnic origin, ability, and 
gender, religious or other belief or political affiliation. 
 

Ownership/ Lease Ownership 

Cross Cutting Themes 
Welsh Language 

ICT 
Equal Opportunities 

 
 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

 Health & Safety Policy 

 Equal Opportunities Policy 

 Welsh Language Policy 

 Environmental Policy 
 
The project in its nature of energy efficiency and conservation 
promotes Environmental Sustainability and as an organisation we 
promote environmental issues, recycling is encouraged, and our 
energy conservation plan is an indication of their commitment. 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

The hall trustees and committee members will be responsible for 
deciding on a contractor to carry out the work and will monitor and 
check on the quality and standard of works. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

This project is for the benefit of the community and wider district and 
is not duplicating any other service. 

Future Sustainability The energy efficient project will reduce costs and help make the 
organisation financially sustainable in the future. 

Page 26



13 
 

The organisations energy conservation plan will be ongoing and 
trustees along with committee members will monitor energy usage 
and costs. 
 
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation of outputs 

 Physical Improvements – 1 

 Environmental Improvements schemes – 1 
 
Feedback will be sought from the different organisations using the 
hall, regarding the improvements made, also monitoring number of 
users within the facility. 
 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

The following information is copied from the MYB criteria. 
 

 Solar Panels 
o Solar panels are not ineligible, but they can only be 

included as part of a larger project.  For applications 
which include solar panels, the running costs of the 
project with and without the panels will need to be 
provided. 
 

The organisation is only applying for solar panels within this 
request, previously they have been successful with MYB funding for 
replacement windows and LED Lighting as part of their energy 
conservation plan for which the solar panels are the final element. 
 
Energy costs for 2019/2020 - £1,115.00, generating their own 
renewable energy would save them this annual cost and more due 
to the anticipated rising costs. 
 

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education  

 Number of individuals into volunteering  

 Number of individuals into employment  

 No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 

 Number of social enterprises created 

 Number of social enterprises supported 

 Number of full-time jobs created  

 Number of jobs safeguarded  

 Public and private leverage funding - £2,072.70 
 

Recommendation Award - £8,290.80  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



14 
 

4 of 6 
 

Application reference:  MYB-21-05 
 

Project Title Centre Development Officer 

Applicant Menter Cwm Gwendraeth Elli 

Ward PENYGROES 

Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

The organisation of Menter Cwm Gwendraeth, which has been in 
existence for 30 years, was set up to support Welsh community 
activities and promote projects that regenerate the rural community, 
working with existing organisations where possible. 
 
Menter have taken on the asset of the Pavilion and are now 
responsible for the Community Centre at Penygroes, which has huge 
potential to increase community activity on a day-to-day basis, which 
has been undertaken due to community needs and following 
consultation on social media linked to the area, as so many 
organisations contacted them stating that they are desperate to use 
the facility. 
 
The grant funding applied for will be used to employ a Centre 
development officer who will manage and prepare a suitable 
timetable, open to all the community, with the aim to facilitate the 
Penygroes and nearby wards, by expanding their activities into the 
area, with the following aims, requested by the community. 

 Provide a service at the café, which exists in the building, 
investigate delivering a Meals on Wheels service to the 
elderly of the community, as this service has proven a very 
successful project within Pontyberem twice a week, 
expanding on employment and volunteer opportunities.  

 Develop a community garden, which will open additional 
funding opportunities. 

 Intend on investigating into re-opening a public library at the 
venue. 

 Offer a community fridge to tackle food poverty in the area.  

Menter have worked with young offenders to assure that the building 
is painted and looking attractive, as this asset will be so important to 
the young people of the area, as they intend to establish a youth club 
to provide services for the future of the community. 
 
The project will directly address identified issues, needs and 
opportunities in a particular community or group of communities, and 
will demonstrate added value to the local communities through clear 
objectives and outcomes. 
 
They have a good working relationship with members of the public, 
local Councillor, local school etc, and the aim is to establish a forum 
to assure they meet all community needs. 
 
All activities will meet the needs of other communities in the wider 
region, contributing to the sustainability of these communities, and 

Page 28



15 
 

will recognise and respond to the diversity and uniqueness of the 
community. 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
Eligible Revenue 

 
 
 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

 
Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

£28,000.00 
 

Nil 
 
 

£28,000.00 
£20,000.00 – Staff & associated costs 

£5,000.00 – IT Equipment 
£3,000.00 – Marketing 

 
Nil 

 
 

£15,000.00 @ 53.6% 
 
 
 

£13,000.00 
WCVA – Applied 

Williams Brown Hill – Applied  
 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

A consultation was carried out on social media, and a huge number 
of individuals and groups stated the need for the Pavilion to be 
open, offering a variety of activities and this project will improve so 
many different aspects, of day-to-day life, such as isolation, mental 
health, healthy way of living.   
 
It was obvious, that a huge service is needed for young people of 
the area, and with the facilities that exist at the venue, so many 
experiences can be offered to the youth of the community, which 
will develop them into community champions e.e tennis courts, 
rugby field, outdoor gym equipment, volunteer experiences. 
 
They have consulted with the community and have had very 
positive feedback, along with full support off the local County 
Councillors, Community Cllr’s, and local organisations. 
 
Previous comment sheets and verbal consultation sessions 
identified the need for the cafe facility, also regular activities and 
events for all age groups, the local community welcomed a 
“Community Hub” which was currently lacking and have expressed 
great concern that the facility has closed. 
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Education – a variety of clubs and activities will be offered to 
children, young people. Welsh learners, local sports teams. The 
school is also near the venue, which means we can investigate 
new, innovative educational projects. 
 
Health – We will encourage all local sport and health activities to 
use the facilities.  Excellent facilities need to be used, such as the 
rugby field, tennis courts, indoor hall.  
  

Page 29



16 
 

Culture - Our aim as an organisation is to promote the use of the 
Welsh Language and to normalise the use of the language, and we 
would be hosting cultural events. 

Ownership/ Lease Community Asset Transfer – Lease Agreement 
 

Cross Cutting Themes 
Welsh Language 

ICT 
Equal Opportunities 

 
 

 
Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

 Welsh Language Policy 

 Equal Opportunities Policy 

 Environmental Policy 

 Digital Inclusion Policy 

 Overall, 18 various polices included 
 
 
They work very closely with a sustainability expert from Business 
Wales which will ensure they use the Pavilion to its full capacity. 
 
Adhering to Environmental Policy. 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

The Centre officer will work in close partnership with all staff of 
Menter Cwm Gwendraeth Elli and with partners of the community to 
maximise the projects reach, avoid duplication, and share resources.  
 
The officer will be responsible for the delivery of the project and will 
be mointored by the MCGE Chief Excecutive officer in monthly 
meetings to track delivery and progress of the project which will be 
fed back to the board of directors. 

 
The financial management of the project will be the responsibility of 
Menter Cwm Gwendraeth Elli and will be monitored by the Chief 
Executive and Board of Directors. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

Due to the closure of the centre, they will reinstate the services that 
were provided and essential to the community, also expanding on 
service delivery and will institute existing and new activities to benefit 
the wider community. 
 
Activities and services will complement and augment those already 
available, and will not conflict, with the only other facility in the 
location being the Penygroes Welfare Hall. 
 

Future Sustainability The aim is to assure that the Pavilion is sustainable, by fund raising 
events and charging a fee to use the assets and they will work very 
closely with a sustainability expert from Business Wales to ensure 
they use the Pavilion to its full capacity. 
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation of outputs 

 New volunteers – 5 

 Jobs created – 1 

 New services - 10 

 

The project officer will develop feedback questionariees on each of 
the project outcomes  and will request feedback from project 
beneficiaries on a quarterly basis. 

 

Page 30



17 
 

Additional information will be provided with case studies and other 
points of interest highlighted and feedback to the project steering 
committee/Reports and will be shared with the project steering 

committee and other stakeholders. 
 

Monitoring reports will track progress and identify whether the 
project is going well by assessing quantitative and qualitative data, 
they will work closely with stakeholders to ensure they are targeting 
the neediest people and these people are supported and that the 
project develops in line with the stated aims and outcomes by 
building on the feedback received from all stakeholders. 

 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

The organisation was approached by the community and Cllr of the 
ward, to take on the asset following the closure of the centre by 
previous organisation, due to bad management. 
 
This project delivery will provide Economic regeneration, Welsh 
culture and language, social support, replacing lost services, in cost 
effective ways, also supporting the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 by improving community resilience 
and cohesiveness. 
 
Providing opportunity to use the premises as a rural community 
hub, community café and Welsh Language, Cultural centre, to 
provide community services and activities for the local community 
of all ages 
 
Expanding outreach services currently provided by the organisation 
in Community Development, Social activity for the elderly, helping 
to keep people engaged in the community. 
 
As an established organisation they are fully aware of the need for 
economic revitalisation and cultural facilitation, achieved through 
multiple operational strands with cross-subsidisation where 
appropriate. 
 

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education  

 Number of individuals into volunteering - 5 

 Number of individuals into employment  

 No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 

 Number of social enterprises created 

 Number of social enterprises supported 

 Number of full-time jobs created - 1 

 Number of jobs safeguarded  

 Public and private leverage funding - £13,000.00 
 

Recommendation Award - £15,000.00 
 

Subject to new job created, job description and contract of 
employment provided 

 

 
 

Page 31



18 
 

 
5 of 6 

 
Application reference:  MYB-21-07 

 

Project Title Golwg Yr Aman Park Improvements 

Applicant Cwmaman Town Council 

Ward GARNANT 

Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

The Council seeks to make improvements by installing a double 
aerial cableway to attract older children, also to install 6 lighting 
columns in order that the area is accessible throughout the year as 
sections of the park do not have any lighting. 
 
The Park is in the heart of the community and is currently used 
extensively by walkers, children playing and the skateboarding 
area, young people socialising as well as people watching sporting 
activities on the Multi use games area and the football/rugby fields.   
 
The facility has received much criticism from the local community 
over recent years due to there being inadequate provision for older 
children and the council recognises that it has a duty to provide 
play equipment for all ages to be inclusive.  
 
It is envisaged that the cableway will be placed near the skateboard 
section of the park where older children currently congregate.  This 
is situated some distance to the traditional play equipment which 
allows older children greater autonomy without fear of disrupting 
younger children at play.  
 
To encourage older children to the play area the double Cableway 
will be the ultimate dare devil attraction, the feeling of 
weightlessness and travelling through the air at speed trains spatial 
awareness as well as the child's under-standing of gravity, space, 
and speed.  Children gain social skills as they return the seat to the 
next user in line and the running and pulling involved in using the 
cableway increase children’s cardiovascular system.  
 
Additionally, improving the lighting at the park by erecting 6 solar 
lighting columns, which as well as being more environmentally 
sustainable it would make the area safer, more appealing, and 
accessible.  This is especially important during autumn/winter 
evenings when it gets dark early; this would encourage people to 
use the park more extensively contributing to a healthier and 
happier lifestyle.  
 
Furthermore, the council is currently refurbishing the bowls pavilion 
to provide a café and bike hire facilities within this area.  This will 
increase community engagement and tourism and therefore It is 
therefore important that the park has equipment to suit children of 
all ages.  
 
The Play area is within a very populated area and is used by children 
of all ages.  However, due to insufficient play equipment for older 
children they tend to loiter and use the play equipment designed for 

Page 32



19 
 

younger children, so they feel it is therefore crucially important to 
have good play facilities provided to serve the needs of older 
children.   

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

£28,860.25 – Net 
 

£28,860.25 
£21,224.25 – Double cableway aerial runway 

£6,636.00 – 6 Solar lighting columns 
£1,000.00 – Installation of columns 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 
 

£15,000.00 @ 52% 
 
 

£13,860.25 
Own funds secured 

 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

During consultation of a Community Asset Feasibility Study, funded 
by LEADER the following conclusion was drawn as to an 
appropriate provision needed to support older children: 
 
Adventure and “Alternative Sports” Provision 
This proposal encompasses a change of approach regarding the 
“play” provision available within the community. It suggests that a 
move towards a service which better represents the natural 
environment around Cwmaman, encourages physical activity and 
supports access to the natural spaces. Moreover, it seeks to 
provide a play, or physical activity, provision which includes 
elements not available elsewhere in areas surrounding Cwmaman. 
 
The consultation process highlighted a particular interest in 
alternative sports provision (BMX tracks, skate parks, climbing 
walls) and adventure play including assault courses, high ropes, 
kayaking; to name but a few of the ideas put forward. 
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Health & Recreation 
The Covid-19 Pandemic has seen a resurgence of people 
accessing outdoor exercise activities as scientific research 
documents that outdoor exercise is safer than indoor exercise, 
playing a pivotal role in the development and maintenance of social 
capital and cohesion, which can influence mental health for children 
and adults. The opportunity of meeting others in a social context 
has a wider health benefit in that it helps reduce loneliness and 
isolation.  Social isolation has become spotlighted in recent months 
following the impact of the Covid-19 virus, the health service has 
seen a dramatic increase with people suffering with anxiety and 
depression.  
 
 
 

Page 33



20 
 

Environment 
Golwg yr Aman was constructed in the 1980’s and benefits from the 
presence of a full range of natural assets that can be expected from 
an inland rural community in Wales. These include easily 
accessible mountain heathland, varied river system, ancient and 
modern woodlands, large grasslands within this park.  It is an ideal 
green space for outdoor exercise opportunities and is located a 
distance from roads ensuring good air quality. 
 
Energy & Efficiency  
As the cost of electricity continues to climb it is advantageous to 
 implement a greener solution by installing solar lighting which will 

reduce the use of fossil fuels and is more sustainable. 
 
Education 
Enabling children to play together helps in forming stable social 
groups and to integrate new children in a community which assists 
in the educative process. Playgrounds provide crucial and vital 
opportunities for children to play.  
 

Ownership/ Lease Cwmaman Town Council - asset transfer 

Cross Cutting Themes 
Welsh Language 

ICT 
Equal Opportunities 

 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

 Equal Opportunity Policy 

 Environmental Policy 

 Welsh Language Policy 

 Digital Inclusion Policy 
 
Environmental sustainability is very important to Cwmaman Town 
Council. They will ensure improvements to the local area by 
working closely with conservation groups and organisations. 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

Cwmaman Town Council will implement and oversee the 
development of the play equipment and solar lighting.  The 
redevelopment works will be supervised by the Council’s surveyor 
David Davies who is a professionally qualified Chartered Surveyor, 
who will oversee the overall project delivery and management until 
completion. 
 
There will be a commitment for the Council to inspect the Play Area 
at regular intervals and to ensure that the equipment and 
surrounding area is in good order including paying for maintenance 
to the park. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

The Park is in the heart of the community, within the park is the bowls 
Pavilion. There are currently no provisions available to serve the 
needs of the community using this area. 
 

Future Sustainability The Community Council will assume full responsibility for the 
management and maintenance of the park. The financial 
sustainability of the park will be achieved through the Council 
budgeting annually for the day- to-day maintenance together with a 
sinking fund for future replacement. 
 

Page 34



21 
 

The Park will be regularly inspected with any faults being repaired 
immediately. 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation of outputs 

 New services – 2 

 Physical Improvements – 2 

 Environmental Improvement Schemes – 2 

 New community assets – 2 
 

The Community Council intend to monitor the project, regarding the 
outcomes above, in the following ways: 

Number of physical improvements – Evidenced by photographic 
and documentary evidence of the improvements made as a direct 
result of the project, both in relation to the primary base for the 
facility and the community spaces improved because of the actions 
undertaken. 

Number of environmental improvement schemes – Evidenced 
by photographic and documentary evidence of the 2 distinct 
schemes; play equipment and solar lighting.  

Number of new community assets – Evidenced by imagery and 
artefacts of the newly developed play equipment. 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

The following information is copied from the MYB criteria. 
 
Can you make more than one Application? 
You can only make one application per project.  In some 
circumstances it may be possible to phase projects whereby you 
will be able to make further applications once a phase has been 
completed.  A grant for one phase of a project does not guarantee 
that you will be awarded a grant for further phases. 
 
MYB supported phase 1 last funding round - the council is currently 
refurbishing the bowls pavilion to provide a café and bike hire 
facilities within this area.   
 
As outlined in the criteria this phase needs to be completed before 
further funding can be approved. 
 

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education  

 Number of individuals into volunteering  

 Number of individuals into employment  

 No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 

 Number of social enterprises created 

 Number of social enterprises supported 

 Number of full-time jobs created  

 Number of jobs safeguarded  

 Public and private leverage funding - £13,860.25 
 

Recommendation Award – £15,000.00 
 

Subject to providing map location and confirmation of 
previous funding award park details 

 

Page 35



22 
 

 
 

6 of 6 
 

Application reference:  MYB-21-09 
 

Project Title Creating an outdoor learning space 

Applicant Parent Teacher Association (PTA), Ysgol Gymraeg Rhydaman 

Ward AMMANFORD 

Project Description/ 
Community Benefit 

Ysgol Gymraeg Rhydaman is a designated Welsh-medium primary 
school situated in Ammanford, which has 293 pupils, including 30 
full-time nursery age pupils. 
 
The school has an outside yard space which is currently partly 
unusable, and the PTA would also like to improve and develop this 
area, creating a partitioned space for relaxing and create a more 
restful and reflective area for pupils, which would also double as an 
outdoor learning area for all classroom pupils, which further supports 
wellbeing and responds directly to the core aims and purposes of the 
new Cwricwlwm i Gymru. 
 
Play is a way for children to exercise and learn new skills, children 
need safe play and learning areas where they can challenge 
themselves and develop physically, mentally, and socially. They also 
need calmer areas where they can sit, have some quiet and restful 
time and chat together to nourish their wellbeing and interpersonal 
skills.  
 
The grant would be utilised to purchase and install a partition fence 
to define this new area on the yard, as well as associated installation 
material and costs. It would also purchase benches to create a 
sociable seating area for pupils which would double as a seating 
area for whole class activities and learning, as well as a covered ‘den’ 
as a quiet corner for pupils who need to escape the noise and 
busyness of a school playground, also a rounded planting area with 
surrounding seating to bring some nature to the concrete yard and 
encourage butterflies and insects that the children will enjoy 
studying. 
 
Additionally, the new space would bring nature into the current 
concrete jungle of a yard and some children are unable to access 
opportunities to simply be outside and connect with nature – to 
learn and breathe fresh air without the hustle and bustle of town 
life. 
 
The partitioned area will also be linked with a nearby school 
gardening plot, which in time will benefit the community, by 
encouraging further participation and relationship building with 
parents and the wider community, also the additional learning 
space would provide a place to extend experiences and skills, as 
well as a space for the community to come to talk and share 
knowledge and experience with the pupils in a safe, outdoor 
environment. 
 

Page 36



23 
 

The past two years have had a significant impact on many of the 
pupils and their families, being able to offer a safe and nurturing 
environment to rebuild close relationships, gain confidences, have 
space to breathe, reflect and relax, would contribute greatly towards 
the children. 
 
The funding requested is for the benefit of the children who attend 
the school, which is now part of the statutory provision. 
 

Total Project Cost 
 

Eligible Capital 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Eligible Revenue 
 

Ineligible Costs 
 

Amount and % of  
grant requested 

 
 

Match funding 
 

£11,020.63 – Gross 
 

£11,020.63 
£3,000.00 – Installation & preparation works 

£4,104.00 – Wooden fence 
£2,692.70 – 8 Benches 
£959.99 – Timber tepee 

£263.94 – Wooden hexagonal planter 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 
 

£8,816.50 @ 80% 
 
 

£2,204.13 
PTA Fundraising secured 

 

Evidence of Need / 
Community Engagement 

The area of the school yard requiring improvement is currently in a 

poor state of repair.   

The school yard is a large area and can be daunting for younger or 

quieter pupils, the planned new development will create a quieter 

space within the yard which would benefit those pupils during play 

time, as well as all pupils during whole class outdoor learning 

activities. 

Due to the COVID pandemic, there has been a huge importance on 
being outdoors for learning and general wellbeing and although there 
is a large yard area, the school doesn’t have a designated quiet or 
learning area for pupils. 
 

Contributing to the 
themes of the Fund 

Education/Health/Recreation/Environment 
 
The school is committed to creating an ethos of enjoyment and 
respect of the natural environment and the limited outdoor area is 
used in creative ways as an additional learning space, reinforcing 
the ethos of transforming experiences into skills and promoting a 
sense of wellbeing to all pupils. 
 
An outdoor partitioned area would create an engaging and hands-
on experience across all areas of learning, with the aim of providing 
increased learning opportunities for the pupils, whilst also benefiting 
their wellbeing, social and inter-personal skills, also acting as a 

Page 37



24 
 

haven for pupils during play times, offering a quieter space to 
nourish wellbeing, inter-personal and social skills. 

Ownership/ Lease Ownership 

Cross Cutting Themes 
Welsh Language 

ICT 
Equal Opportunities 

 
 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

 

 Volunteering Policy 

 Child Protection Policy 

 Welsh Language Policy 

 Environmental Policy 

 Data Protection Policy 

 Equal Opportunities Policy 
 

Adopt and aim to apply the principles of “Sustainable Development” 
that meets the needs of the present without compromising the 
abilities of future generations to meet their own needs. 
 
Seek to improve environmental performance continuously and aim 
to minimise the use of all materials, supplies and energy, also strive 
to adopt the highest environmental standards in all aspects of their 
operation. 
 

Roles and 
responsibilities within 

organisation  

The PTA Chairperson, Kara Lewis will be responsible for overseeing 
project funding and administration.  Cerys Gruffydd (headteacher) 
will project manage and be responsible for completion of the project 
and ensuring the area is maintained. 
 
Also, it is always and especially so in the current COVID climate 
strongly advised that any proposed building works are undertaken 
through the Authority’s Property Services and not for school/PTA to 
procure/manage the works as if they do then the school/PTA will be 
ultimately and personally responsible for all Construction (Design 
and Management) (CDM) Regulations 2015. 
 
CCC Property will be undertaking the works. 
 

Mapping of service/ 
facility within the area 

 

Ysgol Gymraeg Rhydaman covers a wide and varied catchment 
area including several areas of social deprivation.  
 
The school has an outside yard space which is currently only partly 
accessible, health and safety concerns have required part of the yard 
to be closed to the pupils.  
 
The aim as a school is to provide equal opportunities to all the 
children and provide experiences and skills which may not 
necessarily be available to some children otherwise. 
 
 

Future Sustainability The school will be responsible for maintenance, along with 
assistance from the PTA when required.  
 

Outputs to be achieved 
 

 
Monitoring and 

Evaluation of outputs 

 Number of physical improvements - 1  

 Number of environmental improvements schemes 1  
 
Qualitative data by assessing pupil engagement in the partitioned 
area, analysing a log of hours the area is utilised. 
 

Page 38



25 
 

Annual assessments, analysing how outdoor learning and 
quiet/natural space has benefited pupils directly. 

Business Plan/Officer 
Comments  

In respect of Community Schools the Governing Body has control 
over the use of school premises and site, in general terms that 
responsibility is comparable to that of a tenant with the County 
Council as the owner fulfilling the role of landlord and therefore 
schools need authorisation from the LA before any change of the 
school premises whether it be building works or any change of use 
of the school premises e.g. an external nursery provider utilising a 
school classroom, toilets etc. 
 
There is a process that schools need to follow regarding any 
proposed building works or any change of use of school premises, 
firstly the school need to seek LA approval and the school can do 
this by completing an “Application for approval for proposal to 
undertake building works or any change of use of school premises”. 
 
All the above have been adhered too, and full consent has been 
granted by the LA for the project and CCC property will be 
undertaking the works, ensuring compliance with Health & Safety 
and procurement. 
 

Economic Benefit  Number of individuals into training/education  

 Number of individuals into volunteering - 1 

 Number of individuals into employment  

 No of community groups/organisations assisted - 1 

 Number of social enterprises created 

 Number of social enterprises supported 

 Number of full-time jobs created  

 Number of jobs safeguarded  

 Public and private leverage funding - £2,204.13 
 

Recommendation Award - £8,816.50 
 

Subject to replacing wood with sustainable fabric such as 
compost material – Plastic Biodegradable 

 

 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Annex 3 
Food Poverty Fund – 2021-2022 

Report Author: JonHancock@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01269 590216 

Funds Available: £40,719.94 
Capital - £28,635.95  

Revenue - £12,083.99 
 

Report Value: £18,920.86 
 
 

1 of 4  
 

Application Reference: FPF-21-14  
 
 

Project Title Home Gardening Project 

Applicant CETMA 

Ward Tyisha 

Food Poverty 

Criteria 

The purpose of this grant relates to the improvement of Food Poverty services 
such as: 

 Increasing the level of support available and improving the level of 
coverage across the county. 

 Extending opening hours to include some evening and weekends 

 Improving the nutritional value of provisions being provided 

 Educating the community on the importance of good nutrition, 
healthy eating and reducing wastage 

 Establishing sustainable provisional to meet the anticipated increase in 
demand 
 

Project 

Description 

The Home Gardening Project will provide volunteers with a space where they 
can learn about improving their all-round general wellbeing by growing 
healthy and nutritious food.  
 
The aim of the project is to encourage people to start growing their own food 
and provide members of the community with fresh food. Volunteers will also 
learn how to preserve food to make it last longer.  
 
Project coordinators understand that foodbanks are only temporary 
measures when it comes to combatting Food Poverty, which is why they are 
looking at other solutions such as grow your own.  
 
A specific plot of land is available for volunteers to learn about growing food 
together with the space to run sessions for members of the community and 

local organisations. 
 
The fund will help to part fund a project officer for a period 12 months who 
will be responsible for recruiting and training volunteers in aspects of 
growing.  The purchase of a range of equipment, to include storage 
apparatus, compost, plants, and general consumables.  
 

Outcomes Number of individuals reached: 

 How many families - 20 

 How many single people - 5 

Page 41

mailto:JonHancock@carmarthenshire.gov.uk


 
 

 How many homeless people – 6 

Additional outcomes: 

 Number of people receiving skills or training – 24 

 Jobs created – 1 

 Safeguarding – 0    

 

Total Project Cost 

 

Eligible Capital 

 

 

 

Eligible Revenue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ineligible costs  

 

Total Grant 

requested 

 

Match funding (if 

applicable) 

£ 7,230.00 
 

 
Gardening Equipment inc strimmer - £600 

Storage - £2,000 
 

 
Project Officer - £2,730 

Volunteer Training - £600 
Expenses (trips, mileage etc) - £400 

Compost/soil - £300 
Plants - £200 

Consumables (gloves, pots etc) - £400 
 

 
N/A 

 
 

£7,230.00 
 

 
 

NIL 

Cllr and Officer 

Consultations 

Undertaken 

 

Cllr. Suzy Curry and Cllr. Andre McPherson  

 

Contributing to 

key Strategies 

 Help people live healthy lifestyles  

 Tackling poverty by preventing it, helping people into work, and 
improving the lives of those living in poverty 

 Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life 
experiences  

 Promoting Welsh language and culture  
 
 

Ownership/Lease Lease  

Officer Comments  CETMA has a management and support network already in place for helping 
volunteers to maintain the growing areas and they always recruit community 
volunteers and utilise local work experience projects such as kickstart to 
support us.  Also, the group has a fundraising strategy in place which helps 
with running costs of projects when needed. 
 

 

Recommendation 

 

Award £7,230.00 

 

Subject to: 

 

 

 

Page 42



 
 

 
2 of 4  

 
Application Reference: FPF-21-15 

 
 

Project Title Good Enough to Eat! 

Applicant Llandovery Youth and Community Centre  

Ward Llandovery 

Food Poverty 

Criteria 

The purpose of this grant relates to the improvement of Food Poverty services 
such as: 

 Increasing the level of support available and improving the level 
of coverage across the county. 

 Extending opening hours to include some evening and weekends 

 Improving the nutritional value of provisions being provided 

 Educating the community on the importance of good nutrition, 
healthy eating and reducing wastage 

 Establishing sustainable provisional to meet the anticipated 
increase in demand 
 

Project 

Description 

 
During the current pandemic the Centre has been running a Help Llandovery 
Facebook page and enlisted over 70 volunteers to deliver groceries, 
prescriptions, post mail, etc.  They have also been running a much-needed 
foodbank which has help to support many families in need. This has meant 
we have a greater understanding of the needs of the local community and 
this project would aim to meet some of those needs in respect of food 
poverty.   
 
A demonstration of the food poverty situation in Llandovery is that over the 
last 12 months the foodbank at the LYCC has supported an average of 98 
people each week.  The Centre also acts as a receiving point for people to 
collect their purchases of food boxes at reduced prices from the CBSA. 
 
The Community Centre has a garden area to the rear of the building with a 
workshop and beehive.  Volunteers tend the garden, but the group would like 
to run specific courses for vegetable gardening/cookery for members of the 
local community.  They have included dual-fruit trees in this application so 
that people can see how it is possible to produce fruit in very small spaces. 
 
The garden area includes a beehive which is excellent for making people 
aware of the importance of bees.  A camera to be placed next to the beehive 
to record their activity would further develop the work they are doing in this 
respect.  Some additional bee suits would enable participants on the course 
to experience the beehives close. 
 
The group would like to run 12 x 4-hour sessions to encourage additional 
people other than those who attend the Centre to join in gardening and 
cookery sessions, utilising vegetables/fruit grown in the LYCC garden 
promoted via their foodbank. 
 
In addition, they run a Getaway After School Club for children aged 9+ and 
Youth Club for young people aged 11+.  They would use the extra equipment 
with them to encourage them to be involved with growing edibles and 

Page 43



 
 

cooking them afterwards and thereby influencing their families.  The group 
work with 95 children and young people in the Centre. 
 
The addition of a greenhouse would make it possible to plant seeds in the 
autumn and then plant out in the spring.  It could also be used to over-winter 
plants.  It would be an excellent resource to encourage people to see 
gardening as an all-year round activity. 
 

Outcomes  

Number of individuals reached: 

 How many families - 40 

 How many single people - 20 

 How many homeless people – 2 

Additional outcomes: 

 Number of people receiving skills or training – 55 

 Number of volunteers - 20  

 

Total Project Cost 

 

Eligible Capital 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eligible Revenue  

 

 

 

Match funding (if 

applicable) 

 

Total amount of 

Grant requested 

£3,976.40 
 
 

Child Safe Water Butts - £82.57 
Polycarbonate Greenhouse - £472.98 
Heavy Duty Hand Trowels - £30.30 

Forks and Spades - £115.40 
Wheelbarrows - £91.98 
Roof Shelter - £1620 

Dual Fruit Trees - £50.96 
Beekeeping Suits - £422.62 
Chopping Board - £32.14 

Aprons - £82.50 
Baking Tins - £49.95 

Nature Watch Camera - £149.00 
 
 

Compost - £100.00 
Seeds and Plants - £100.00 

Garden Tutor – 48 hours @ £12 (12 x 4-hour sessions) - £576.00 
 
 

Nil 
 
 
 
 

£3,976.40 

Cllr and Officer 

Consultations 

Undertaken 

 

Cllr. Handel Davies – Llandovery  

Contributing to 

key Strategies 

 Child Poverty Strategy for Wales - Helping children to have the very 
best start in life and improve their early life experiences 

 Supporting and educating families to the benefits of a healthy diet and 
make them more aware of the value of eating fresh vegetables and fruit  

Page 44



 
 

 Offering parents and young children essential skills to make simple and 
yet significant changes which can impact the health and wellbeing of 
families now and when children are adult 

 Growing projects are intergenerational and encourage community 
involvement – Cohesive Communities  

 A prosperous and Healthier Wales (WBFGA) 
 

 

Ownership/Lease Owned 

Officer Comments  This project will encourage its communities and demonstrate how they can 
grow their own food, cook from ‘scratch’ using their own produce and 
supplement family budgets, therefore reducing the need for people to live in 
food poverty.   
It demonstrates long term sustainability, with staff from the centre and after 
school club being involved in the projects upkeep as well as being able to 
generate a small income from the produce, they grow that can go towards the 
maintenance.  A newly opened restaurant in Llandovery which is owned by an 
investment company heard of the good work undertaken by the Centre and 
now provides food worth £1,500 each month to add to the foodbank.       
 

 

Recommendation 

 

Award £3,976.40 

 

 

Subject to: 

 

 

 
 

3 of 4  
 

Application Reference: FPF-21-16 
 
 

Project Title Gyda’i gilydd. 

Applicant Swper.box CIC  

Ward Carmarthen Town South  

Food Poverty 

Criteria 

The purpose of this grant relates to the improvement of Food Poverty services 
such as: 

 Increasing the level of support available and improving the level of 
coverage across the county. 

 Extending opening hours to include some evening and weekends 

 Improving the nutritional value of provisions being provided 

 Educating the community on the importance of good nutrition, 
healthy eating and reducing wastage 

 Establishing sustainable provisional to meet the anticipated 
increase in demand 
 

Project 

Description 

The organisation has independently, and in collaboration, run various 
schemes in the past to support food poverty in the area. Collectively they 
have observed key issues in the schemes and projects they have previously 
run and created a suitable strategy. 
 

Page 45



 
 

The aim of this strategy is to firstly tackle the lack of representation in local 
and healthy food within the food bank/low-income supply chain.  Key 
elements of the strategy are: 
 

- To take local surplus and donated food and turn it into accessible 
ready meals. 

- Start the roll-out of already created community food education 
programme.  

- Create bulk set meals weekly of nutritious and healthy ready meals 
as access points.  
 

Meals will be easily available from non-stigmatised, normalised environments 
such as Nurture’s Café. Revenue from this will enable further investment and 
sustainability.  Meals will also be available by a community freezer 
accessible by all.  These meals will be accessible and free for all those in 
need, operating with a pay-as-you can system like the above cafe meals, 
utilising the both local food and fresh food surplus extending the shelf-life to 3 
months and distributed across 6 food banks/hubs in the county.  
 

Community food education will be available to both the target end user and 
community leads, with subscriptions available to cooking classes as well as a 
weekly veg box.  There will also be a chance to volunteer in a meal prep 
kitchen and develop skills related to food sourcing and recipe development. 
 

Outcomes Number of individuals reached: 

 How many families - 100 

 How many single people - 200 

 How many homeless people – 35 

Additional outcomes: 

 Number of people receiving skills or training – 150 

 Number of volunteers - 10 

 Jobs safeguarded – 2 

 

Total Project Cost 

 

 

Eligible Capital  

 

 

Eligible Revenue  

 

 

 

 

 

Match funding (if 

applicable) 

 

Total amount of 

Grant requested 

£6,230.89 
 
 

Food containers - £136.70 
Freezer - £1,414.19 

 
 

Chefs to create ready meals - £3,120.00 
(12 hours x 20 weeks x £13 per hour) 

 
Cooking Classes and Meal Development Plan - £1,560.00 - £156 per 

session 16 hours @ £13p/hour) x 10 sessions  
 
 

Nil 
 

 
 

£6,230.89 
 
 

Page 46



 
 

Cllr and Officer 

Consultations 

Undertaken 

 

Cllr. Gareth John and Cllr. Alun Lenny  

Contributing to 

key Strategies 

 Child Poverty Strategy for Wales - Helping children to have the very 
best start in life and improve their early life experiences 

 Supporting and educating families to the benefits of a healthy diet and 
make them more aware of the value of eating fresh vegetables and fruit  

 Live-Well objectives – tackling poverty, creating more jobs and 
growth throughout the county and help people live healthy lives 

 Carmarthenshire Community Nutrition Strategy 2015 
 

Ownership/Lease N/A 

Officer Comments  This project and application are made by, Swperbox CIC, pioneering and 
award-winning social enterprise - Working Towards a Healthier Wealthier 
and Greener Wales.  This project will encourage its communities and 
demonstrate how they can grow their own food, using good quality nutritious 
food to establish a baseline for healthier eating habits and engage with 
people at low access points.   
 

 

Recommendation 

 

Award £6,230.89 

 

 

Subject to: 

 

 

 
 

4 of 4  
 

Application Reference: FPF-21-17 
 
 

Project Title Learn to Grow 

Applicant South Cefncaeau (Ty Enfys) Family Centre 

Ward Llwynhendy  

Food Poverty 

Criteria 

The purpose of this grant relates to the improvement of Food Poverty services 
such as: 

 Increasing the level of support available and improving the level of 
coverage across the county. 

 Extending opening hours to include some evening and weekends 

 Improving the nutritional value of provisions being provided 

 Educating the community on the importance of good nutrition, 
healthy eating and reducing wastage 

 Establishing sustainable provisional to meet the anticipated increase in 
demand 
 

Project 

Description 

The centre aims to inspire an intergenerational group and their Junior and 
Youth clubs, to develop a grow space in the garden of the Family centre.  
 
The group will also work with Llanelli Men's Sheds to build themselves and 
the Family Centre a raised planting bed each (under 18’s will have ‘flat 
packs’ to construct at the Centre) and then they will learn how to grow 
vegetables, herbs, and fruits. They will gather seeds from their first crop to 

Page 47



 
 

use in following years. They will be provided with lessons on nutrition, 
preparation and cooking of produce.  
 
Additionally, they will participate in inventive lessons that will excite and 
inspire, such as making tasty popcorn from their very own grown corn! The 
centre will choose a local ‘grow space’ in Carmarthenshire to visit for 
inspiration. Participants will eventually progress to grow produce at home 
and/or work on a plot in the local Dwyfor Allotment. They will learn how to 
plan tasks, produce, and work within a budget, and to build, grow and cook 
foods.  
 
They will encourage skills sharing by inviting local community volunteers to 
join the group and show participants how they grow. The participants will 
eventually be able to pass on the useful skills they have learnt to their family 
and friends. 
 

Outcomes  

Number of individuals reached: 

 How many families - 50 

 How many single people - 150 

 How many homeless people – N/A 

Additional outcomes: 

 Number of people receiving skills or training – 75 

 Number of volunteers - 10 

 

Total Project Cost 

 

 

Eligible Capital 

Items  

 

 

Match funding (if 

applicable) 

 

Total amount of 

Grant requested 

£1,483.97 
 
 

Garden tools - £358 
Planting raised beds - £580 (500 + 80 for insurance by Men’s Sheds) 

Growing aids - £289 
Health and Safety equipment - £256.97 

 
 

Nil 
 

 
£1,483.97 

Cllr and Officer 

Consultations 

Undertaken 

 

Cllr. Fozia Akhtar and Cllr. Sharen Davies – Llwynhendy  

Contributing to 

key Strategies 

 Child Poverty Strategy for Wales - Helping children to have the very 
best start in life and improve their early life experiences 

 Offering children and young adult’s essential skills to make simple and 
yet significant changes which can impact the health and wellbeing of 
families now and when children are adult 

 Growing projects are intergenerational and encourage community 
involvement – Cohesive Communities  

 Mental Health – huge part of CCC’s well-being goals  

Ownership/Lease Leased - CCC 

Page 48



 
 

Officer Comments  The group have secured funding from the Community Lottery than will ensure 
they are able to continue paying for the core costs until December 2023 and 
BBC Children in Need funding until May 2024.   

Recommendation Award £1,483.97 

Subject to: N/A 

 
 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECISIONS RECORD - 14TH SEPTEMBER 2021.
	3 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE FOLLOWING GRANT FUNDS: TARGETED FINANCE FUND, MYNYDD Y BETWS COMMUNITY BENEFIT FUND & FOOD POVERTY FUND.
	Annex 1
	Annex 2
	Annex 3


